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RT: This is another in the series of FDA oral history interviews. Today, the 

interview is with Mary-Margaret Richardson, Public Affairs Officer, St. Louis Branch, 

Food and Drug Administration. The date is March 6,2000. The interview k taking 

place in the Parklawn Building. Robert Tucker is conducting the interview with Ms. 

Richardson. 

Mary-Margaret, we like to begin these interviews with a brief personal history 

as to where you were born, raised, educated, and any relevant experience you might 

have had prior to joining the Food and Dmg Administration. 

MMR: I was born on October 3, 1942, to Agna Benjamin Richardson and Margaret 

Abston Richardson, at Hotel Dieu Hospital, New Orleans, Louisiana. At the time of 

my birth, I was the first girl in the Richardson family in forty-two years. Asia breach 

birth, I started out life backwards and was named and baptized by a Daqghter of 

Charity, a personal friend of family who was at the hospital. Actually, my patents had 

picked out another name for me. I believe it was Rebecca. I ended up beiag Mary- 

Margaret, Mary for my paternal grandmother and Margaret for my mothea, who is 

Margaret Mary. 

We lived in New Orleans until I was approximately ten years of age, at which 

time my parents moved to Kansas City, Missouri, where they began a busine&.s. They 

had a labor workroom for interior designers. In other words, they made d r a ~ r i e s  and 

slipcovers and fancy types of window treatments, et cetera. 

I was educated in parochial schools, both in New Orleans and in Karlsas City; 

graduated from Loretto Academy, which was aprivate Roman Catholic school for girls; 

and I graduated in 1965from Avila College in Kansas City, Missouri, with adegree in 

biology--a major in biology and a minor in psychology. 

About the time of graduation, I took the Federal Service Entrance Ekams, and 

then that starts the FDA career. 



RT: You came directly into federal service as a college graduate. 

MMR: Came directly into service as a college graduate. Ach~ally,I had signed a 

contract to teach fourth grade, and when I talked to the pastor of the neighboriqg parish 

where 1 was going to teach--again, a Roman Catholic parish--I showed him my 

transcript and told him that I was not c e f i e d  yet in the State of Kansas. He looked at 

the transcript and said, "Ah, not a problem." 

But as it turned out, I received a notice from the State of Kansas that IWas three 

hours short in Elementary Methods. Now some thirty-four plus years later, I am still 

three hours short in Elementary Methods. However, because of the wles and 

regulations in the State of Kansas at that time, dealing with uncertified teachers on staff, 

the pastor and I came to a mutual agreement that it was better to tear up the tontract. 

So 1didn't have a job and had graduated from college and very shortlp around 

that period of time, which would have been the late summerlearly fall, I rdceived a 

letter of inquiry from the Food and Drug Administration that they would like1 to speak 

with me. 

RT: Mary-Margaret, did I ask you what was your major in college? 

MMR: My major was biology, my minor was psychology. I had some a$pirations 

potentially of thinking of going into medicine or one of the sciences. However, I hit a 

major roadblock when I flunked organic chemistry. I was part of 50 percdnt of the 

class that was flunked. So that was a very traumatic experience, because I b d  been a 

decent student, if you will, and when I got my grade card, I came home and talked to 

my parents, and I said to my mother, "You tell Dad." And she said, "No, you tell 

Dad." 



Well, my father was a Marine, and so we always had a home atmosphere like 

boot camp. And so I guess my dad knew that Ihad been working hard. I had dropped 

a couple of courses in an effort, but somehow organic chemistry with all those little 

bending rings and those things just were not my thing. 

So I went in, and I said, "Dad, I need to talk to you," and I showedlhim my 

grades, and he looked at me and he smiled, and he said, "Congratulations, you finally 

found something you couldn't pass." And that was the end of the discussion. Nothing 

else. 

RT: The degree that you had earned certainly qualified you for the entrance 

requirements to FDA. 

MMR:It did, and apparently it put me--unbeknownst to me at that point--on a register 

of eligibles to be interviewed by the Food and Drug Administration at a time when they 

were particularly looking for women candidates for inspector jobs. 

RT: Let's see, that would have been 1965? 

MMR:That was '65. I probably received the letter sometime the end OF August, 

beginning of September, was interviewed by Ted Benjamin, who was the chief inspector 

in Kansas City. 

As a matter of fact, I went to Mr. Benjamin's home to be intewiewdd, which 

I thought was a little unusual, but he was really interested in tallcing to me right away. 

My father at the time worked with the Social Security Administration, and I had 

interviewed with them, but wasn't terribly impressed. Well, Mr. Benjarnin really 

wanted to talk with me. 



So since we decided since it was in a nice area of Kansas City, it was flrobably 

okay, and one evening I went out and was shown into Mr. Benjamin's home a d  sat at 

one end of a rather long living room, and Mrs. Benjamin sat at the other erld of the 

living room knitting. It kind of reminded me of Madam Lafarge at the moment. 

But the interview was quite interesting. It was pretty, pretty negative at times. 

Women . . . You know, there was an emphasis on grain elevators and feed W s  and 

getting dirty and doing food warehouses and maybe being in a rendering plant, ina silo, 

and all sorts of things and . . . 

RT: Did Mr. Benjamin raise the question of whether physically you could handle the 

bags of flour? 

MMR: Yes. Could I lift this, could I do that, bags of flour, bags of, you kndw, other 

kinds of things, working in different types of environments, getting into rail calrs, could 

I carry a ladder, did I think I could run a grain trier? Of course, all of the* things I 

knew not a whole lot about. 

My previous exposure to the Food and Drug Administration had bw several 

years earlier in my science class in college, where two chemists from the Kahsas City 

lab had come out and talked about the Food and Drug Administration. At $he time I 

thought, gee, that would be a nice place to work, but I promptly forgot it. 

Well, here I'm confronted with all of these things, and I finally said to Mr. 

Benjamin, "How many women do this kind of work?" And he said to me, ''If you get 

thejob, you will be our first." 

RT: So you were one of the first in the nation. 



MMR: I was one . . . I think as we've talked about it, I'm somewhere between two 

and five, because there was a woman, Imojean Tibbits, who was hired in New York, 

and I believe she was hired in June of '65 and I was ultimately hired in November of 

'65. 

Well, Mr. Benjamin did not know somehow that I have a very strongl genetic 

background in accepting challenges. I come from a long line of very strong women, 

and my role model had been my great grandmother, who came from a f b d y  in 

Arkansas where there were three sets of twins and a set of triplets and singles to total 

thirteen. Her father believed in education of the boys but not of the girls, so &y great 

grandmother essentially had a third grade education. She was manied at one point in 

her life. It was a German marriage of convenience. When her husband said to her, 

"I'm going to California and look for gold," she said, "I'm going to Kansas City and 

raise the children." They had had two by that point, and my dear great grandmother, 

whose name was Minnesota Stamps, became one of the first women in the Garment 

Workers Union in Kansas City, and also marched up and down Grand Avenue and had 

things thrown at her because she asked for the right to vote. 

So somewhere in my genetic makeup, you know, when Mr. Benjaminsaid, "If 

you get the job," I'm going, "Yes, okay. Right on. I'm interested." 

RT: You had a pioneer spirit. 

MMR: I did. 

RT: Let me ask, too, during the interview, was it clear whether you were being 

considered for a field position or in the lab or office? 



MMR: No, it was clear that I was being considered for a field position. He explained 

to me that there were women in the lab. Well, of course, I wasn't interested in a lab 

position and probably couldn't have qualified because of my dismal showing in organic 

chemistry. It was an investigator position, at a level of a GS-5, the salary was a little 

less than $5,000 a year. Of course, in those days, in 1965, I think I had told myself, 

gee, if I could ever make $10,000 a year, I would be burning the world up. 

RT: Right. Now during the inte~iew, was there any discussion of the req$irement 

for travel and any complications that might ensue since you were a lady and m@st of the 

personnel were men? 

MMR: Well, there was some of that. Of course, I didn't . . . I guess the W g s  you 

anticipated at times didn't come to pass. It was those things you did not anticipate that 

proved to be the interesting ones. 

Yes, there was discussion of travel. Actually, the majority of the $terview, 

which I perceived to be fairly negative, was about the physical problems that bould be 

hvolved and what I might encounter. I might add that just a couple of years abo, some 

thirty-something years later, I saw a memo that had been written by headq9arters--I 

believe it was written by Mr. Allan Rayfield-and I saw in that memo the en@ script 

that Mr. Benjamin was using during that interview. And when I read that, I went, 

"Holy cow! Look at this. This is exactly . . ." And he had followed the memo 

faithfully. The script was the same. It's like, "Oh, my goodness, I've seen this 

before," that is, where it came from. And it's like I'm hearing it all again, but I was 

hired. 

RT: Good. Now did you ever learn or was there any significance to your interview 

being conducted at the home rather than the office of Mr. Benjamin? 



MMR: I think they were under some pressure to hire some people, and that e m e d  to 

be the most expedient way to handle the situation, because I was working. At tHat time, 

I was working at an electrical supply place and I had a day job, and so it was difficult 

to get off. So he said, you know, "We really want to talk to you. Can you come to my 

house?" And that was, you know, it was completely on the up and up. 

RT: I wasn't thinking that. I just wondered if rather than interviewing a candidate 

of the female gender at the office was there any concern on the part of this mdn, but it 

apparently wasn't. 

MMR: I don't think so. No, I think it was more, gee, we really want to tal& to you, 

and can you do it at your earliestpossible convenience. Well, at that point t$mslated 

to, yes, we can have an early, like 790 in the evening appointment. 

RT: Now when you reported, I think you indicated a little earliem it was 

November 15, 1965. What kinds of duties were you first engaged in? 

MMR: The first day was rather interesting because Iwas assigned to E. Pitt Sniith, who 

was my &st supervisor. 

The first thing that happened, of course, was, "What do we do abbut your 

name? Mary-Margaret." Well, when I was a youngster I had been nicknanled Mike 

by my family, and it pretty much stuck. The only time I got called Mary-Margaret was 

when I was in deep trouble, if you will, and, you know,as they say, deep kunchee. 

Even at the girls' academy a number of the teachers had called me Mike, with the 

exception of Sister Mary Rose, who was the Latin teacher for whom everyone Was Miss 

So-And-So. 



So Pitt said, "What do we callyou?" I said, "You can call me Mike. If Mary- 

Margaret's a problem, you can callme Mike." "Okay. Fine." 

So in the middle of the afternoon ...Of course you spend your first day filling 

out forms of which Iknew little about at the time, but anyway .. . To get administered 

the oath of office, Pitt took a hat with Mickey Mouse ears out of his desk and blew a 

whistle, and there in the bull pen office of the Food and D N ~Administratiod at 1009 

Cherry in Kansas City, Missouri, I took my oath of office in front of God and 

everybody, if you will. Normally, the other candidates, the male candidates, went into 

the director's office, and the director was A1 Barnard, and . . . But my swe-g in was 

apparently a novel event. 

RT: A1will admit that. He costumed himself with Mickey Mouse ears, is ~t right? 

MMR: Yeah. "This is a little strange, but . . ." Yeah, I thought ,weU, maybe 

is that the way they do, all these folks around here? But it was just because 1was me, 

I think. 

RT: When you actually got into the work, did you go out in the field with someone 

for a while? 

MMR: Yes. Ibelieve the philosophy in those days, somehow, as Ihave comq to reflect 

upon that time, was, you know, we have to hire these women, but we donh have to 

keep them. The philosophy, somewhat unstated, seemed to be take them out and get 

them dirty and they'll come in and say, "We quit." 

So, of course, Kansas City, being smack dab in the middle of the cohntry, did 

a lot of sanitation work. There were a lot of grain elevators and feed mills and food 



warehouses and rendering plants and a number of things, and, of course, being it's 

position on the river, they had a number of terminal grain elevators. 

So the early work was basic sanitation work. Well, also, I guess, the second 

day Iwas on the job, they came up to me and said, "What is your inseam size?" I said, 

"What? Who wants to know?" And they said, "Well, we have to get you some 

coveralls." You know, some of our inspectors in those days were six foot two, three, 

four. Well, I'm five foot three and didn't I look funny in long coveralls, so, the 

question was, "Well, we need to know your inseam size so we know what size coveralls 

to get you." 

Clothing was a problem for women in those days. About the second or third 

day they took me to an animal feed mill. I didn't do anything. We went o v a  to talk 

to management about something. But I had on a skirt, and we walked up this open 

grate for a couple of stories. Well, I'm sure the guys down below got, you b o w ,  got 

a thrill. But after that it was, we can't do this like this anymore. 

So I did wear coveralls for a while. I have some wonderful pictures in my 

coveralls and hard hat. But those weren't tembly glamorous, so we dkd settle 

eventually on the white trousers and the shirts, and that was more suitable atbe, and 

I wore Wellington boots simply because it was, you know, decent footwear. I had 

boots. 

But the early work was, of course, your traditional training in sample 

collections. We had some food warehouses. We did a terminal grain elevator probably 

in the first couple of weeks, and Iwasn't really prepared. Ididn't think that I Was upset 

about it, but one of the investigators told me later, they said, "Well, we kind of figured 

you were because you went around the building and told everybody goodbye." 

We got to this elevator, and the fellow that I was with, a very tall, rawk--boned, 

Kansan, short bur hair cut, was named Earl Stevens. We're down undemeakh in this 

leg of this elevator and the belt hasn't been used for several days and it's fuU of dust 

9 



and on the belt are all of these tracks, and I'm thinking, "Oh, I'd hate to meet the critter 

that made those tracks. " 

So there was a dead space under one of the legs, and some of the concrete 

blocks had been knocked out. Earl sticks his face in there. Well, this rat just ranright 

in front of his nose. Well, I'm supposed to be the one that was excited and upkt when 

I saw my first rat. Well, Earl turns to me and his eyes were the size of saucets. "Did 

you see that?" We spent the next thirty minutes trying to entice that thing dut of the 

hole so we could take its picture. We were not successful with that. 

But I never did like rats. Even when I got out and did independent w+rk I was 

collecting some animal feed samples one day. I'm in this country elevator and it's dark 

and I hear, "Chatter, chatter, chatter," and I looked up and not three feet from me sat 

these two little beady eyes. Mice didn't bother me; I didn't want to be in khe same 

room with a rat. Mice were okay, but rats . . . I saw one run up a guy's coverall leg 

one day, and I did not . . . You know, it didn't bother me a bit that he p e w  those 

coveralls off as fast as he did because that was not a good experience. I alwbys stuck 

my coveralls in my boots when we were out so that couldn't happen to me. 

RT: When did you start traveling, covering an area on your own? 

MMR: I think the philosophy then was you do a typeof inspection once with la trainer, 

you do one semi-independently with a trainer with you, and the third time you're an 

expert. So it wasn't too long that I had my first road trip. Of course, I Had had a 

couple of trips with a supervisor, and then started out on my own. 

RT: Did you encounter, as sort of as a new girl on the block, if you will, any 

problems or any resistance on the part of industry management in hav@g a lady 

inspector rather than a man inspector? Was that a problem at all? 



MMR: Well, in some cases we surprised a lot of them. They tell the story of the guy 

in the rail yard that had just apparently gotten out of the shower and was walking 

through the yard office naked as a jay bird. And our car pulled up out in frdnt and I 

got out, and apparently this poor man dove into the nearest locker, and he had handle 

marks on his back for some time, and I guess after that they started dressing when they 

knew women might be around. 

No, industry was sometimes surprised and subsequently would complain that 

the women were harder on sanitation than the men. I don't know whether W t  was so 

or not, because we were taught the same way. So unless it was a s t e r eom that we 

were better house cleaners and so therefore their grain elevator should be as clean as 

a house, I'm not sure of that. 

But generally management was extremely nice and very cooperative, and 

sometimes would want to do things for us that we really should have been doing . . . 
Like sample collection, you know. They didn't want you to go and throw youd torpedo 

probe down in the bin. They'd rather do it for you. But then when you lookd at how 

you were going to have to talk about how that sample was collected, it was not the right 

thing. So I often had nightmares of the rope from the torpedo probe wrapping around 

my ankle and being pulled into the bin, but that never happened. But management was 

generally very cooperative. 

There was one time that was particularly fumy, and this wasn't management, 

but I had been inspecting a cheese plant in northeast Iowa, and it was a small plant, and 

the town was also small. It consisted of a grain elevator and a post office &d a caf6 

that was also the bar. 

So I had been in the cheese plant in the morning, and at lunchtime I seeded to 

g$o lunch. Well, of course, FDA had said, you know, never, never, never take a 

government car and park it where there's an alcohol sign. Well, it was the ohly place 

in town to go for lunch. I go in, and it's a long room and all the booths on the left side 





Two weekers were fun though, because those were in the days also when you 

basically didn't come home for the weekend, and you had to find ways to amuse 

yourself that didn't involve use of the government car. 

There was one time when I was out in Grinnell, Iowa, and I was meeting a 

friend in Des Moines for the weekend. So I called the supervisor on Friday, I said, 

"Well, I'll be in Des Moines for the weekend." He says, "Do you have a pdckage to 

mail?" I said, "No." He says, "Do you have something to go to the airport?D'I said, 

"No." And I kept saying, "No," and finally he said, "Well, you can't 1eavelGrinnell 

with the government car." And I went, "Oops," and I had this friend waitin$ for me. 

So at that time there was no car rental agency in Grimell, and so I bund the 

guy that owned the local taxi cab and I worked out a deal with him,could I re@t his taxi 

cab for the weekend. I went over and parked the government car in his yard and got 

in his brand new cab. It was a Buick taxi cab, it had a meter on it and everything. And 

I drove from Grinnell to Des Moines in the taxi cab. Well, I pull up to the motel and 

my friend just about fell into the swimming pool. So we ran around t o m  in the 

Grinnell cab for the weekend. (Laughter) Bad. 

RT: Field management policy I recall in those years was rather strict abo3t matters 

like that. 

MMR: Yes, it was. But it also taught you to, you could go between the motel 

and the post office and if the restaurant was there, okay, but so you learnelj to mail 

things a sheet at a time so that, you know, and as long as you were between tHe lodging 

and the post office you were fine. But if anything happened you better be c o m g  back 

from the post office or just mailing something. So it got a little challenging, 

Eating wasn't considered official business. If you were there for two weeks and 

you were stuck on a weekend, if you wanted to go to church, that wasn't official 



business. I think over the years things have become a bit more liberal, you b o w ,  as 

long as one used common sense. 

RT: I think that's true. Reason has taken over. 

MMR:I would hope so. Of course, you know, as I look back on a lot of thihgs, you 

find in government many times that if there is a violation that there is an overreaction, 

that you have to do it this way, I mean, instead of taking the person who c o d t t e d  the 

violation and dealing with them, then you have to deal with the whole class, and that 

makes it, you know . . . Of course, Lord, in the days I started, you were exlpected to 

go in town and check the telegraph office to see if you had any wires frbm your 

supervisor. I never got one but, you know, you had to check. 

RT: Mary-Margaret, how long was it before you had an opportunity to move ahead 

grade wise, that is, promoted? 

MMR: Well, we went from five to seven fairly slowly. As I cleaned out my office, I 

have all my personnel action things in a file. But at one point, when I wanted to go 

from a seven to a nine, I had a supervisor tell me that, well, he'd have to get drunk 

enough to write me up for a promotion, and I sort of reared back and looked ad him and 

said, "Well, sir, I think I'd buy you the bottle, but I think then you'd turn me in for 

giving you a gift." You know, it was very difficult. 

I was in investigations for six years and came out as an eleven and didn't get a 

promotion to a twelve until after I had moved to St. Louis as a Consumet Affairs 

Officer, and then received a promotion to the twelve, and subsequently to a W e n  as 

a Regional Public Affairs Specialist. 



RT: At that time, Mary-Margaret, is it not true that twelve was the journeyman 

level. 

MMR: Journeyman, that's right. 

RT: Unless you were a specialist or something for the thirteen. 

MMR: It was tough. As you look back and you think, promotions didn't come as fast 

in those days either, but it was also a bit of a problem sometimes that you thc@ght that 

women were held to a higher standard. Imean, there were some fellows who, if you 

were a fair-haired boy, somehow they seemed to get by a lot easier. Whereas, if I had 

done something like that in the report, then, you know, somebody would have been all 

over me. 

But I was always happy when a supervisor had things to say about nly reports 

because then I knew they were reading them and used those opportunities to learn 

better, how to do it better in the future. 

RT: While you were still an investigator, did you have opportunity for somb training 

schools? 

MMR: In essence, the training schools in those days were much different fkom what 

they are now. Training was few and far between. I was scheduled in 1971 to go to 

basic drug school. However, I never made that because of some other W g s  and a 

career change. But, yes, I had been to Bacti school in Madison, Wisconsin, and I had 

been to maybe a couple of other things, but not as many as they held. Traimg in those 

days was an in-house type of operation. Your supervisor, your chief investigator, and 



even the district director participated in that training program, and you didn'a seem to 


go outside the district as much. 


RT: I might ask you in that regard, who was the director at the time you came in at 


Kansas City? 


MMR: At the time I came in in Kansas City, the director was A1 Barnard. We then 

went through a series of people. We had Leslie McMillan, we had Charlie Arbstrong, 

we had Lloyd Claybourne, we had Jim Adamson, and then Mike Rogers. 'Ilhat's the 

history of the directors I think from the time I was in Kansas City. 

RT: So you're sort of under . . 


MMR:Oh, I'm sorry. In the interim, we had BillHill as well. 


RT: Oh, yes. And when you went over . . . Well, let's change this record now just 


a moment. 


MMR: OK. 


(Interruption) 


RT: It was to a branch with the St. Louis District, is that correct? 


MMR: Well, at the time I transferred in 1971, St. Louis was a resident *spection 


station. At one point, St. Louis had been a district and there were some admhstrative 

dealings where St. Louis was reduced from its district status. 



RT: How many people were in the resident post or station? 

MMR: Oh, my gosh! At that time we had probably ten or twelve. It was a large 

resident post. 

RT: Who was the head person there? 

MMR: At the time I first started traveling to St. Louis, I believe the supervisor there 

was Forrest Aull. Then came Richard D. Turner. And then subsequently added 

Charlie Bringman, who is still with us today. Turner has retired, Bringman is1 still with 

us, but I'm sure will be retiring fairly soon because he has over forty years' Service to 

the agency. 

But then subsequently, after Iwent into the public affairs arena, our fidst branch 

director when it was made a branch was, I think, Ronald M. Johnson. Than we had 

Raymond Hedblad and then Charles Breen. Both have been branch directbrs in St. 

Louis, and Mr. Breen has just been selected as the new district director in Sdttle. Mr. 

Hedblad has or is retiring shortly. I think he has retired. And Johnson is no longer 

with the agency. 

RT: As you went over into another arena, what were some of the things that you 

became engaged with in the public affairs office? 

MMR: Well, there was an important thing that made me change, first of all, from 

regulation to education. I'd been out to a sandwich manufacturer and was working for 

the same supervisory investigator who was not going to write me up for a promotion. 

I had been out to inspect the sandwich shop, and the time before the people had not 

been using hand sanitizing solution, when sanitation work began to focus more on the 



bacteriological problems. This time I went in the firm and I saw employees had raw 

skin from their elbows to their fingertips. I took the litmus paper, waved it i@the air, 

and it turned black over the solution. I mean, this guy was using almost IOOpercent, 

and these poor employees were not having any skin as a result. 

So I showed the man how to make the solution, showed him how ta use the 

litmus paper, and I gave him a tube of litmus paper, which was marked thidty-seven 

cents, that's what it cost the government. I was so happy that we had gotten a 

correction and the man was now doing something right or that he could do sbmething 

right, and it would benefit everyone, that I put it in the report. My supervis~r called 

me in and gave me holy hallelujah because I had given away government pr4perty. 

At that point I thought let me out of here, you know. I thought I would be a 

better educator than I was regulator. So I began to look at the consumer affairs 

position, but there was a difficulty there because I was not a home economist, and all  

of the people at that time were home economists. It was only through a subsequent 

change I thinkin the agency when they went to Consumer Protection & Environmental 

Health Service or that CPEHS thing, and then when they came back to F ~ Athat 

somehow the requirements had changed, and in 1971 I had put in an applicaJion for a 

public affairs vacancy--well, at that time it was CAO, Consumer Affairs OffiNr, which 

subsequently changed to public affairs so I use the terms interchangeably. But my 

predecessor in St. Louis who was Mrs. Loretta Johnson had retired in February, I 

think,of 1971. That was the summer of the Bon Vivant vichyssoise soup sibtion. 

On the 12th I was out doing recall effectiveness checks and found oub that my 

brother had become ill. Iwas due to go to drug school in August. I'm sorry it was July 

the 12th. I was due to go to drug school in August. I found out my father Md a brain 

tumor, and I had to come home from Shenandoah, Iowa, where I was spending the 

night. My dad had surgery on the 21st of July, my mother had a corolliYy in the 



surgery waiting room. Two weeks later I found out Iwas being transferred to St. Louis 

to this consumer affairs position. 

Nineteen seventy-one was a very interesting time in my life, to say the least. 

The big change, of course, going from regulation to education is in regulatiom you tell 

no one anything in those days. You know, you couldn't divulge work p b s ,  you 

couldn't do this, you couldn't do that, etc. Now you're talking about who we ;Ire, what 

we do, why we do it, when we're going to do it, why we need to change the Way, and 

so forth. So my learning curve was very steep because I became the first Consumer 

Affairs Officer who had been an investigator. I figured that my backglound in 

investigations gave me some unique qualifications to go out and talk to the puWc about 

FDA, and that proved true, although I didn't have a whole lot of preparation. I mean, 

there was in essence no training. 

When I went to see Mrs. Johnson in St. Louis .. . She had retired in February 

or so and the mail had kept coming in all of that time, and by the time I walked in in 

November, the mail was crawling up the walls, all four walls around this little tiny 

office, and it was just like, oh, this is an overwhelming task. 

Well, I got into St. Louis around November 1971. Actually I took up 

residence--although I was selected in July . . . By the way I didn't ever gdt to drug 

school, okay, because when I was selected, they just said, "No, now you cdn't go to 

drug school." 

So I got into St. Louis, the moving guy lost my furniture. He was subposed to 

take two right turns,hit Interstate 70, take another right turn in St. Ann, and a left turn 

into my apartment complex. He went the other way, parked the truck in Tqpeka and 

went out on a monumental drunk. I'm camping at this apartment. In the mearltime, my 

dad's on the critical list. He was at the veteran's hospital in Leavenworth, Kansas, 

because the brain tumor was very malignant, they didn't get all of it, @d it was 

continuing to grow. 
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Well, my dad died the 21st of December, and so I had to get several dults  and 

a body on an airplane going to New Orleans. The funeral was Chrishnas Eve and done 

by our Jesuit cousin, and he had to hurry up with the service because the ladies needed 

to get in and decorate the church. 

Well, going into consumer affairs, my learning curve for the first year was 

exquisitely steep. I would take files home every night and read and read and read and 

just try to get myself together into what I could talk about. 

RT: At that time as far as Washington direction or Washington guidance, who was 

heading up the consumer affairs' function? Do you recall? I think Carla Williams 

started it. 

MMR: Carla Williams had st& it, but I think Carla Williams was on her way out. 

Ted . . . Let's see, Ted Kron? 

RT: Larry Trawick perhaps? 

MMR: Well, at that point Larry Pilot was in public affairs. That's informati6n I could 

probably get, but I don't remember that person. That's one I don't recall. 

But I did come to my first meeting and some of the ladies looked at me like, we 

don't thinkyou're going to make it; you're not a home economist. And then that was 

buttressed by the fact that the first morning the discussion at the breakfast tabile was on 

the merits of buttered versus unbuttered wheat toast, and I'm going, "How'kl I get in 

here?" 

RT: Well, you were able and required I guess to be rather self sufficient out there 

in your new job. 



MMR: Yes, yes. And it was kind of make your own way, you know. We Had some 

general guidelines. When I went to see my predecessor, I went to her home in St. 

Louis, she lived on Westminster Place,and I commuted there one fallday, and I got out 

of the car, and I could hear these large hounds baying in the background. It was kind 

of a cold, gray day, and I thought, oh, my goodness, and I go in and Mrs. Jobson was 

a bourbon drinker, and, of course, we had several fingers of bourbon, and wei sat there 

and talked about the program. It's like, how do I do this? Well, blah-blah-blah. And 

I'm thinking, Idon't know where to start. Well, I was so glad that she had not left any 

shoes under her desk, because I couldn't fill them. She was an institution in St. Louis. 

She was an attorney who had been with the Works Progress Administration (M/PA), she 

was very well C O M ~ C ~ ~politically with congresswoman Leanore Sullivan, who was 

a giant in the area of consumer protection and had a lot to say and do in the e4rly days 

of the consumer protection movement. 

And so here I was following Mrs. Johnson, and I was like, oh, my aoodness. 

But there was a link. We had a wonderful clerk in St. Louis named Catherihe Mayer 

who provided me some training, and essentially I went from there. 

My first television interview I think I white-knuckled. I was doing the 

workshop a little later at the county library on how to buy an OTC drug or something, 

and this woman came up to me at the break and she says, "You know, you should do 

yourself a favor." And I said, "What is that?" She said, "You should never be on 

television." "Excuse me." "Well," she says, "Isaw you on the Julian Bell Show, and 

you just looked like you didn't have any personality at all." I thought, hrmhmm, my 

dear woman, let me tell you, I will do things in this room with fifty peoble that I 

wouldn't dare do on TV. 

Well, I must have really sat there during the whole interview and just white- 

knuckled, just grabbed onto the chair, because, you know, you sit still, you do this . . . 
But after that I decided, okay, know your subject and then relax and enjoy. 
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RT: Well, in a way that was a constructive criticism that helped you. 

MMR: It was. It was. But it really, brought me up short, you know. It was one of 

those things that, what? I thought I did a good job. Well, hmmmm. 

So after that, it's like, okay, just know your stuff and do your thing. 

RT: To go back for a moment to the inspectional part of your career, were there any 

particular unique or elaborate types of problems or issues that you were involved with 

at that time? Apparently you did a cross section of work. 

MMR: Idid a cross section, and there weren't any, you know, any ones that $and out. 

I think probably the most interesting and intriguing one was inspecting an o ~ o n  ring 

manufacturing operation. That was pretty unusual. I also smelled like oniolps for the 

two weeks. Every time I'd get in the shower I'd smell onions again. It wasllike, oh, 

my goodness. 

Surprised them because we had some indication that they were oot doing 

cleaning properly, and Iwent back in the firmat 1:30 in the morning when tha cleaning 

crew was there, and we found what the problem was. But management at &at point 

was extremely surprised that here I would show back up at 1:30 in the morrling. But 

that was the only time because the in-line tubs were showing something, and, you 

know, it was like we had to put it together, so we started doing that. 

RT: Did you have any experiences in the hazardous substances program that were 

unique? 



MMR: Well, hazardous substances was a very interesting area to work in. Of course, 

FDA had that work before the creation of the Consumer Product Safety Commission. 

One inspection particularly sticks out in my mind. 

I had been going to inspect a fairly small firm, but they made a dry fire 

extinguisher, and many times the hwould refuse to give FDA a formulation. So in 

preparing for the inspection, I had come across a formula for the dry type of fire 

extinguisher in a reference book in the library, and I happened to note that d o w  in my 

diary. During the inspection I got to the formula part and, of course, the guy refused, 

and he said, "No, I'm not going to give you my formula." I said, "Okay. Well, how 

much of this do you put in?," and I named the f ist  ingredient, and he looked at me. 

"How much of that do you put in?" By the time I got to the third ingrediedt his wig 

was about to come off of his head. He said, "Where did you get my formula?" I said, 

"Sir, okay. I got this out of a book in the public library," but at that point I was just 

convinced that it was pretty darn close to what he was using in his product so that took 

w e  of the formula issue. 

RT: That was good thinking. 

MMR: But you didn't know sometimes what management was going to do. 

There was another time when I was in an ice cream manufacturing plant. Of 

course, there's always been the problem in FDA of can you have a formula dr can you 

not have a formula. In the area of food products, of course, FDA is not 4owed to 

have formulas, but you can enter and inspect anything in the manufacturingarea. 

So this f is t  day at this multi-flavor ice cream plant, the manager swck to me 

like glue, and Ithink he wrote down more things than Idid about my inspectidn. Those 

were also in the days when you copied down every ingredient of every color and 



everything in the place. But Ihad noticed out in the production area a lovely 6ook that 

had apparently all the formulas for all the ice cream. 

So the second morning of the inspection, he must have figured I was fairly 

innocuous so he left me alone, and I go out in the manufacturing area aad I start 

copying these formulas. 

Well, I see him come out from the side by his office, and the man is not walking 

on the ground. He's buzzing over to me and he says, "You can't have th*. You 

can't leave here." And I didn't know what he could do, because I had not bwn faced 

with that during my training. They didn't tell us what they could do to you. 

So he went in to call his attorney, and when he did I ripped the formulas out of 

my book and stuck them down in the front of my bra and thought, "Okay. Nbw if you 

want these, you'll have to come get them, and then perhaps we can gem you for 

assaulting a federal officer. " 

But after a while, he said, "My competitors would pay thousands of dbllars for 

those formulas." I said, "That's absolutely correct, but you have a book right out here 

in plain view of everyone." I said, "What's to prohibit any of your employpes from 

taking this information and going down the street to your competitor." I @id, "I'm 

only here because I need to see if you're complying with the law, and we need to check 

your labels, and without formulas we can't check your labels." 

So we parted as friends, but it was one of those days when you wenq, okay. 

Then there was the thing where you never ate or drank anything during an 

inspection, and the first time I did a potato chip manufacturer, and the manader would 

go through and periodically select a very nice looking chip off the edge of the belt and 

chomp on it, and Iwatched him do that allday. At the close of the day, I couldn't stand 

it anymore. I went to the store and I bought the biggest bag of potato chias I could 

find, and I sat in my motel room, and I ate them, every one of them. 



Or in another town, the warehouse was so bad in these days. This Was in the 

days before video cameras. This place was just absolutely walking alive with mice. 

The exterminator was doing somewhat of a job. You couldn't put your foot down in 

the basement that you didn't step on a carcass, but they were also running all over 

the . . . I was just absolutely hysterical. 

And so this was a fairly small town in southern Missouri, and one of the first 

things I found out was this man supplied almost every restaurant in town. 60 at the 

close of the inspection day I went to the store and I bought packaged chkese and 

mustard and a loaf of bread, something I knew that didn't come from his wrlrehouse, 

and that's what I ate for my supper that night at the motel. 

RT: When you were in the field as an inspector, did you work with state b d  local 

people, and if so, did you have any experiences or impressions of any kind, as a federal 

person? 

MMR: Yes, we worked with state and local people. Of course, there were times, since 

FDA does not have any kind of embargo authority where you get in a situation that 

would need instant remedy and you get the state people in, and the grain peqple were 

always really nice. Imean they were nice working relationships. I can't remehber any 

that were particularly contentious or whatever, but you'd also, of course, cozy up to the 

sanitarians, if you will. If you were in a town and find out which one of the Nstaurants 

were the best and which ones you didn't want to eat in or if they wouldn't $at there, 

then, you know, that was a pretty good clue that you didn't want to eat there either. 

RT: Well, I kind of brought us back, but Ijust thought some of the accounts of your 

experiences that we didn't cover might be of value. 



MMR: You know, one of the things that I've done over the years and it's r d y  kind 

of fun, I've kept a journal over most of my adult life. So I have some food and drug 

type of remembrances that are tucked in those journals, and one of these days I keep 

saying I'm going to get them all out and lay them out and write my book, because I 

think there are a number of experiences that would be just, well, they were hysterical. 

But some were also challenging. That was the thing you asked a quesdon about 

previously, with regard to travel. It wasn't the situation of, you know, the co-Habitation 

or whatever; it was what did you do when you were alone with yourself? 

The first time I went in a hotel room and closed the door and I was alone with 

me, what did that mean? I didn't know who I was, and when I began to find out I sort 

of didn't like me. But then you began to use the time more constructivel~. I had 

wonderful time to correspond with friends. On weekends I'd sit and write ldtters and 

do all kinds of things. 

I subsequently found out I'm, believe it or not, a very shy person. Everybody 

goes, no, no, no. Well, really so, because I've learned to work in the exboverted 

world. But my inner world is the world of ideas and so forth, and I came to value that 

travel time, that time for being by myself as really good, good time, and Itraveling 

provided that. 

But in the early days, you couldn't anticipate what would happen. As I said, 

it was the things you didn't think about. If you wanted a drink at the end of the day, 

and you walked into the bar at the hotel, it was like raising a red flag. Almdst saying 

to every guy in there, hey, guys look, I'm available, when you really weren't, All you 

were doing was sitting in there. So if you wanted to drink, what you did @as buy a 

bottle in broad daylight and take it back to your room and have a drink or turo. Well, 

that wasn't very good socially, you know. 

Per diem when I started was something like thirteen dollars a day, ioom and 

board, and you didn't earn a lot so you had to watch where you stayed. Wbll, some 
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guys were perfectly happy to stay at the Y; I never did. When we stayed in some of 

these little sleaze bags, you'd buy a bug bomb or you'd buy Lysol or whatever. 

I remember writing a memo--I was just thinking about raising the perdiem-as 

to why you could use more money, and I wrote about buying bug bombs a d  Lysol. 

But then there was one hotel in St. Louis that we subsequently found the place rented 

by the hour. So you check in then you'd be here for a week, and they'd look at you 

like, how many towels do you want? You know. You mean you're here fot a whole 

week? 

RT: That's probably the experience you had as a woman that was different than a 

man. 

MMR: That guys didn't have. That guys didn't have. 

RT: They didn't have to contend with that. 

MMR: That's right. That's right. 

RT: So that was unique. 

MMR: Yes. 

RT: When you were in the public affairs office or the consumer office, were there 

any particular situations there that were kind of unique or outstanding? 

MMR: One of the things, and I think it was more of a personal decision I made before 

taking the job, well,. my father was in the hospital; we came smack up :against a 



bureaucracy that was just awful. I made the decision that when I went into donsumer 

affairs that I would go the extra mile for the consumer, that I would not ju$t kind of 

shrug somebody off, that I would attempt to provide good customer service, because 

I knew how it felt to be up against a bureaucracy. 

So as a Consumer Affairs Officer and later a Public Affairs Speciblist, it's 

always been my goal to provide very good service to people. And to be strbight and 

up front with people and say, "Look, I don't have all the answers, but I s e rv~as your 

door into this bureaucracy. IfI don't know something, I will attempt to held you find 

an answer." So I don't know whether that's been unique or not, but that's1 been my 

goal during the time that I've served as a Public Affairs Specialist. To try and be an 

enabler to people, and I think that's what the position really needs, it needs to be. 

We've had lots of experiences. I'm known in St. Louis as the FD4 lady, in 

terms of being the voice of the community. When I retired on the 3rd of Mhrch, one 

of the local papers essentially wrote the headline, "FDA's Local Voice Gdduates to 

Retirement." There were times when the St. Louis community didn't know here was 

a whole other FDA office in St. Louis, because I was the Food and Drug Administra- 

tion. I was the most visible person, and consumers had often remarked, "Oh,my gosh, 

when things rough, Mary-Margaret will get on television and tell us what we &odd do, 

you know, what we should do about this situation, what we should believe." 1 That was 

a tremendous vote of confidence from the public. 

But this happens, of course, with Public Affairs Officers all across t& country. 

Because we work in the local communities and can have the confidence, w& build up 

confidence and trusting relationship working with the media. 

You know, there was a time when this agency considered the meda to be the 

enemy. Well, I have to say myself the media happens to be my best frierid and my 

worst enemy. But when you work with somebody and you develop ltrust and 



confidence, and you know that each of you has a job to do and let's see if we can, you 

know, let's see if we can work it out. 

I had four rules for media. One was I'll always return your phone calls. 

Second was I will provide you what information I can. If you get into freedom of 

information, I will tell you how you should submit that. The third is you may print or 

broadcast anything I say, because Inever speak off the record. And the fourth is if you 

call me Mary you won't get any in te~iew at all, because my name is Mary-Margaret. 

RT: Well, certainly the function of the Public Affairs Officers have brdught the 

agency into the awareness of every home, which, years ago, we really didn't Have that. 

MMR: Well, as an investigator, you could do your whole career and people would 

never hear of you, and that would mean that everything was going right. Bpt on the 

other side of the coin, the issues that the Public Affairs Specialists deal with . . . I 

mean, when you look at the number of mentions that Food and Drug geu in local 

media, particularly as the regulatory responsibilities of the agencies have grown, you'd 

have to live on a rock never to have heard of FDA. But then sometimes what the 

people have heard is a different issue. 

Now I always looked at the same time it's important to be able ta provide 

information to people. I didn't start out to change anybody's mind, but I wdl provide 

you information and you may change your own mind, you know. Everybody comes 

to FDA with an expectation of who we are. Sometimes it's very far from the ttuth, and 

a lot of our work in public affairs is getting the folks to have the propem kind of 

information, but I can't change your mind. 

RT: While you were at the field, of course, you weren't necessarily directly 

impacted by the changes in management of the agency, the commissioners, et al., 



except perhaps in terms of programs. Were there any periods of time that you recall 

where the top leadership of the agency might have either led us into new groufids or not 

led us as far as your work was concerned? 

MMR: I think that the public affairs people were fairly fortunate in that we had pretty 

close contact with the commissioners, and in a sense, our program priorities changed 

with commissioners. 

I had the good fortune to work with Commissioner Kennedy when h& came to 

St. Louis and dealt with the medical community in a grands round situatiod with the 

medical society. When the folks would come out from headquarters and cohe to the 

field, that was a really big event. It's kind of like, that was nice and we'd h e  to see 

more of that. 

Of course, now with the stakeholder and the leveraging meetings and so forth, 

it's happened, okay. But, yes, a change of commissioners often will dictate a change 

in programs, a change in focus, a change in emphasis, where we're going. A couple 

of signal events, whether it was commissioners or conditions in society, AID$ changed 

the way everybody did business and tobacco changed the focus of the agehcy for a 

while. In some things, the public affairs people lost a certain sense of autonowy in local 

control, being able to respond to the demographics of your own community. 

Sometimes what is very important and very topical in Washington ddsn't wash 

in a local community. They could care less. In the days when we had the Consumer 

exchange meetings, the Office of Consumer Affairs would set the topics, &at might 

have been an important topic to my community and it might not have been. Sb it takes, 

you know, it takes kind of both. It's not an eitherlor situation, it's a boWa+d. 

RT: You were given enough autonomy, though, to work in areas of locd interest, 

were you not? 



MMR: Yes, that's true. And in one sense, that's how the program grew in the 

early days. It wasn't an autonomist type of thing. Later, trying to bring that back into 

the mainstream of the agency because of our historical, you know, give us a gloal, give 

us a target, and we'll go out. I know in the "Take Time to Care" Program, I think 

eventually in starting out the Office of Women's Health, it was expected that we would 

all walk alike and talk alike and sound alike, and that's not true. The publ/c affairs 

people are exquisitely talented individuals that given a goal will go out and actomplish 

that goal in ways that are incredibly efficient, incredibly inventive, and, you b o w ,  the 

Office of Women's Health would end up with a program that was even much more than 

they envisioned when they first started. But trying to make allof us walk, lbok, and 

talk alike, that's an impossibility. 

RT: I think it was Commissioner Goddard that gave the field much more freedom 

to operate out of a straight-line management mode that the agency had followed so long, 

and I'm sure that reflected to all personnel like your profession. 

MMR: That's true. 

RT: We've had a little break now. 

Other experiences that you had traveling or making inspections. Do My come 

to mind that we might add here? As you went to small towns, I guess thdre were 

sometimes different experiences thanin metropolitan areas. What circumstanc&s of that 

kind did you run into? 



MMR: Having women around at times surprised people. I went to a grain elkvator, it 

was fairly small, out in the middle of Kansas, and I know the manager called all of his 

friends and said, "Come see what I've got." 

So I'm going up to check these butler bins which are what, forty-foot bins, and 

I climb up the side with my grain cloth and my grain probe, and I got to the top and had 

forgotten that the bin had been sitting out in the Kansas sun for allday, and I $at down. 

The first thing I thought was, I have scorched the back out of my trousers, ypu know. 

So I stood straight up in the air, and looked down and I realized I didn't want to be up 

there either. So I opened the port on the bin, and dropped down in thqre. The 

temperature was about 150°, and finally Ijust sat there for a minute. I got up b d  made 

some scratching noises like Iwas doing something. That place could have be& ~ n n i n g  

over with rats at that point, but I wouldn't have seen any of them. So I get out of the 

bin, closed the top, climbed down the ladder, and said to the manager, "Sea ya," and 

I left. That was wild. But that didn't happen too many times. 

Some of these feed mills were rather complicated systems, and I alw4ys would 

ask people to explain the process. One guy one time . . . Well, in this feed mill,he 

says it goes from here to here to here to here. He had reversed two stftps in the 

process, and I think he thought, dumb woman, she won't know the differedce. So I 

said to him, "Let me see if I have that correct." I went through the prwss ,  but I 

reversed the steps, and he looked at me like, you got me. I looked at him a d  I said, 

"Now, Sir, please don't ever do that again." 

You know. I was Wce, okay,because we were women, it was smnetimes 

thought that we didn't quite know what was going on here, and that was an unfair 

assumption on the part of some people. 



RT: Now, of course, the work that you and your peers, other ladies, that d g h t  have 

been early in the field, really laid the groundwork for a lot of advances that lave been 

made in the agency for women. Do you want to elaborate on that? 

MMR: I'd like to think so. You know, I look at women today who are regional 

directors and district directors and branch directors and so forth and think in some ways 

I have a connection to these women as my spiritual goddaughters, because I t W , you 

know, had all of us quit early on, they wouldn't have gotten a chance. And I don't 

think too many of the early people that started as the pioneers, if you will, are still 

around. I might be one of the only ones that stayed to retirement with the agency. I 

mean, thirty-four years plus later here I am. But it's like we were the piowrs. We 

were the people who put up with this stuff, and later when I became and emed the 

agency as an EEO counselor, as a trainer for sexual harassment, and fihally for 

workplace diversity awareness and related to the office of personnel management some 

of the things that happened in the early days, they just were aghast at SOmd of these 

circumstances. 

And, yet, there was an inspector with FDA in KansasCity when I st@ted who 

said, "You know, you're going to be watched very carefully," and he said, "and a lot 

of people will expect that you respond in a particular way." In other words, 

stereotypically how a woman would respond. 

The other piece of advice was that you have to know what issues are important 

to go to the mat about. Don't yell about everything, because then you'll dilute your 

effectiveness. With those two pieces of advice, I've tried to forge out an FC)A career 

that will have some meaning to those who came behind us. It never made me a regional 

director, but again I feel a real kinship to those women who are now in those psitions. 

Early on, we had two investigators who were hired the same day with the 

agency, one male and one female, and, of course, in the early days they u s 4  to tell us 



you're taking some guy's job. I said, "Baloney. We took the Federal Service Entrance 

Exam just as you did. " 

But these two people were trained the same way, they had the same adlvantages 

and so forth, they became romantically involved with each other, and left. Now no one 

said anything about his leaving, but a lot of people said, "Oh, we wasted our *sources 

training her." At that point FDA's turnover ratewas extremely high. I sdd, "The 

issue is how do you recruit and train qualified people, not necessarily qualifted men, 

qualified women. How do you recruit and train qualified people and keep &em with 

the agency for a period of time." 

RT: That was a good point and might have been missed if it hadn't been brdught up, 

because I think traditionally judgments of that kind were commonplace. 

MMR: Well, Mary-Margaret has never been afraid to stand up and say what think is 

true. Now sometimes people did not like to hear that. You know, when lwe went 

through the Bon Vivant vichyssoise soup incident, we had one white male Rdpublican 

banker I think it was that died. Congress gave us Project Hire, Congressi gave us 

money, Congress did a number of things for us. 

When we had the listeria monocytogenes breaking upon the horizon Q d  thirty-

eight women and children died, Congress didn't give us anything else. Now What does 

that say in the political arena as to where power is and who the powerful peo$le are in 

our society? You lookat that and you go, but, you know, we, as the Food b d  Drug 

Administration, are in business to protect everyone, not just certain segme* of that 

population. 

RT: Well, stated. 



You said earlier that this is the first day of your retirement. So that's not far 

enough away maybe to have a distant view, but perhaps you have some reflections or 

thoughts on how the agency is or might be in terms of where you started and through 

which you have progressed to where you are today. 

MMR: In reflecting--and I've done a lot of that as I've thought about retirement-I was 

still enjoying what I was doing and committed to the Food and Drug Admilistration. 

I still subscribe to that philosophy that someone else has stated before me that if we 

didn't have a Food and Drug Administration it would be necessary to invent one. 

However, the Food and Drug Administration that I knew in 1965 is Wkedly 

different from the Food and Drug Administration that I know in 2000. I look back on 

my career. Just simply because some of the problems have changed, the indus@ies have 

changed, technology has burst upon the scene, there are a number of thingsithat, you 

know, not the least of which of course is the increased regulatory responsibility of the 

agency and so on and so on and so on. 

But when I first started doing programs for the public in 1971, my plbilosophy 

kind of went, gee, because we're there you are safe. And I have found incrMsingly I 

could not say that to consumers anymore, because no one--be it govemmimt, be it 

industry, or any other group that's involved-can promise us total safety. 

Number one, I'm glad that the agency is beginning to assess risk iderltification 

and risk management. I think those are two important things. I mean, to tell a 

consumer, "Look, no drug is totally safe period. We know that every one ofithem has 

a problem. Anything that is pharmacologically active capable of causing sonlething to 

happen is also capable of causing something you don't want to have happen." 

And so as you look at the concept of safety, we realize that what I would say 

to people now is, "Because we are there, you know more about the risks thaP you may 

face and potentially how to deal with that risk." Or if the riskbecomes unadceptable, 



then it is the function of an agency to help you deal with that risk, perhaps by taking the 

product away or by providing you better information, and certainly one of the strongest 

links in this whole chain is an informed consumer. 

RT: Well, that certainly is true. 

We've covered quite a wide range of experiences you've had, and now that 

you're retiring, I'm sure you'll still have an interest in these affairs even on your own. 

MMR: I'm sure that I will. I look at my own use of technology. I have a colhputer at 

home. I may have to declare Intemet-free days so that I can get something dode. Iwill 

visit the FDA Home Page. I hope to keep in touch with a number of colleagues, both 

past and present, and certainly I will not lose interest. 

Just the other day, even though retired, somebody sent nle somethingthat falls 

into the category of an urban legend, and I really felt obligated at that point toiflip over 

to the FDA Home Page, get the correct information, and send it out. 

You know, when the Food and Drug ~dm&stration or when any org-tion 

has been a part of one's life, as the Food and Drug Administration hasbeenla part of 

my life for the last thirty-four years, you just don't sign on a form that says I'm out of 

here and forget all of those things. 

I'm doing an interview, and the reporter said to me, "Well, what are pou going 

to do now that you're retired?" And I said, "Hey, look, I've done for thirty-faur years. 

I'm now going to learn to be." And part of that being is an appreciation of those 

friends who have made you who you are, who have contributed to your life in ways 

they never knew or never understood. And I can also look back with pride on the fact 

that I have done service to the American public, but I've also done a bit of service to 

my colleagues in the Food and Drug Administration. I knew it was time to leave the 

day somebody called me an institution. I said, "Hey, that's a computer." But I've been 



called an institution, a pillar, a matriarch, a mentor, and seven or eight othar names. 

But the institution was, okay, that was time to go. 

But I can look back with pride and great satisfaction upon my servim with the 

Food and Drug Administration, and who knows what the future will bring. 

RT: Mary-Margaret, we're especially pleased for the history program information 

that we've been able to get from you, these experiences and views, and we certainly 

wish you well in your retirement ahead. 

MMR: Thank you. And I think it's important that as an agency we continue to tell our 

story, because those stories make us who we are and they make us stronger. There are 

some organizations now, for instance the Nike Corporation, hasa corporate stmyteller. 

The. history project will contribute to our getting folks together and telling our story, 

because it's certainly one that's worth telling, both from an individual and a Corporate 

standpoint. 

RT: We would agree with that and thank you very much. 

MMR: You're welcome. Thank you. 




